CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - APRIL 21, 2015

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on April 21, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate
Stephen Springs, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Susan Smith, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Dev. & Eng.
Dan Tracy, Development Engineer
Israel Roberts, Development Manager
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of April 7, 2015.
Commissioner Ferrell asked for a correction on page 8, second to last paragraph.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected; second by
Commissioner DePuy. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan
Commission and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed
from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

2. Revised Elevations — The Shire Phase 11 Hotel: A request for approval of revised building
elevations for a four-story, 119-room limited service hotel. The 2.55-acre site is located at 3605
Shire Boulevard, northeast corner of Infocom Drive and Wyndham Lane.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-04-21 Minutes.doc 15



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

3. Final Plat and Common Area Landscape Plan — Ingram Terrace: A request for approval of
a final plat and common area landscape plan for a 62-lot single family subdivision with private
streets. The 8.62-acre site is located at the northeast corner of Renner Road and Brand Road.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

VARIANCES

4. Variances 15-03 & 15-04 — Cisco Campus: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for approval of two (2) variances to Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development Code: 1)
parking waiver for the central plant and loading dock area; and 2) allow long-term parking in a
C-M Commercial District. The 10.84-acre site is located at 2200 E. President George Bush
Highway, northeast corner of Renner Road and Jupiter Road.

Mr. Roberts stated he would brief the Commission on Items 4, 5 and 6 at one time, but the items
would require separate votes.

Mr. Roberts gave a brief history of the original variance — Variance 00-07, that had a number of
special conditions including a parking waiver for the central plant areas of each of the buildings;
long-term parking for 30% of the provided parking spaces; and allowed a 587 parking space
deferral for sections of the Cisco Campus. He added that each of the variances was granted to
Cisco only and, in-lieu-of trying to amend the original variance, staff suggested re-establishing
the variances for each of the lots since the lot lines had changed from the original variance and
would not accommodate the sale of a portion of the property.

Starting with Variance 15-03 (Lot 1E), Mr. Roberts explained the variance was a parking waiver
for the central plant areas that corresponded to a nine (9) parking space reduction for the lot. He
added the area was basically unmanned, used for utility and loading dock areas, and was an
exact replica of the variance granted in 2000.

Mr. Roberts explained that Variance 15-04 would permit long term parking without the
inclusion of a 30% maximum limit as long as there were an adequate number of parking spaces
near the front entrance of the building, which would align with the City’s current design
policies.

Variances 15-05, 15-06 and 15-07 pertained to Lot 2 with 15-05 requesting a parking waiver for
the central plant area (same as the original variance in 2000) that equaled a 66 space parking
reduction. He noted that 15-06 would allow long term parking with no limitations, and 15-07
was a request for a reduction in the parking ratio for the office area.

Regarding the reduction in parking for the office area, Mr. Roberts said that with 2,500 current

parking spaces for the office and central plant area, the applicant was requesting a 27%
reduction (691 spaces) for the area, which would leave 1,879 required parking spaces.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Roberts advised that the applicant had provided a parking analysis for Lot 2 that showed
667 parking spaces being used under the current layout, or 32% of the provided parking spaces.
He added that if Lot 1 was sold, the Cisco employees would be transferred to the buildings on
Lot 2 and once the employees and visitors from Lot 1 were combined with the employees and
visitors using Lot 2, the applicant estimated 1,000 parking spaces would be occupied, or a little
over 50% of the available parking spaces.

Mr. Roberts stated that Variances 15-08 and 15-09 were for the undeveloped tract of the Cisco
Campus (Lot 4C) that was originally included in the variance from 2000 and retained the rights
for the waiver from the central plant, long term parking, and was tied to Cisco only. He added
that part of the current request asked to have the variances tied to the land and not Cisco so if
Lot 4C was sold the rights would stay with the land.

Commissioner Maxwell asked what could be built on Lot 4C taking into consideration the
allowable long-term parking and other rights.

Mr. Roberts replied that anything that was allowed in a Commercial District could be built.

Commissioner Roland stated he had concerns about granting variances to undeveloped land and
wondered if the variances made the land more or less valuable.

Chairman Hand concurred with Mr. Roland’s statement and asked staff what the variances
would solve, if approved.

Mr. Roberts replied staff was attempting to re-establish the central plant waiver and long term
parking rights under the current lot layout, which was different from the layout in 2000 and the
long term parking request would be more in line with the City’s current design policies.

Commissioner Roland noted that in the variance from 2000, Lot 1E had frontage on President
George Bush Highway (PGBH) and Renner Road, but under the current proposal the area did
not have frontage on Renner Road and part of the new Lot 2D was undeveloped. He wanted to
know why the undeveloped land in Lot 2D was not included with the undeveloped land in Lot
4C.

Mr. Roberts replied that was the way the property was currently platted under a request that
came before the Commission in 2001. He added that even though the area was divided
differently now than in 2000, Cisco had utilized the entire campus so the change in the plat was
not a problem; however, now that Cisco was attempting to sell the property it was the
appropriate time to update the variances.

Commissioner Maxwell said he did not have problem with any of the variances with the
exception of Variance 15-09 and the portion of the variance that tied long term parking to an
undeveloped piece of land. He suggested that when the property was developed, the owner
could come before the Commission and request a long term parking variance if needed.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Chairman Hand concurred with Mr. Maxwell and said he felt the change in the plat lines
between 2000 and 2001 downgraded the property by not having access on both PGBH and
Renner Road.

Mr. Roberts suggested the Commission could tie the long term parking portion of the variance
request to an office use only.

Chairman Hand asked if the applicant had any concerns with Mr. Roberts’ suggestion.

Mr. Aaron Graves, Kimley-Horn, 12750 Merit Drive, Dallas, Texas, representing Cisco, said
they were not opposed to having the long term parking tied to an office use only.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Variances 15-03 and 15-
04 as presented; second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

5. Variances 15-05, 15-06, & 15-07 — Cisco Campus: Consider and take necessary action on a
request for approval of three (3) variances to Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development
Code: 1) parking waiver for the central plant and loading dock area; 2) allow long-term parking
in a C-M Commercial District; and 3) reduced parking ratio for office area. The 49.93-acre site
is located at 2250 E. President George Bush Highway, northeast corner of Renner Road and
Jupiter Road

(As stated in the minutes from Item 4, the Commission would vote on each item separately.)

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to recommend approval of Variances 15-05,
15-06 and 15-07 as presented; second by Commissioner Springs. Motion approved 7-
0.

6. Variances 15-08 & 15-09 — Cisco Campus: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for approval of two (2) variances to Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development Code: 1)
parking waiver for the central plant and loading dock area; and 2) allow long-term parking in a
C-M Commercial District. The 17.32-acre site is located at 2600 E. President George Bush
Highway, northeast corner of Renner Road and Jupiter Road.

Chairman Hand stated the Commission would vote on Variances 15-08 and 15-09 separately
based on the concerns expressed by Commissioner Maxwell.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 15-08 as
presented; second by Vice Chair Bright. Motion approved 7-0.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 15-09 as

presented with the added condition that long term parking was allowed for office use
only; second by Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 7-0.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

PUBLIC HEARINGS

7. Zoning File 15-03 — Metroplex Self-Storage: Consider and take necessary action on a request
for revocation of Ordinance 3858 (Special Permit for self-service storage warehouse), approval
of a Special Permit for an expansion to an existing self-service storage warehouse, and a change
in zoning from I-M(21) Industrial with special conditions and C-M Commercial to PD Planned
Development. The property is located at 528 W. Arapaho Road, north side of Arapaho Road,
west of Custer Road.

Mr. Shacklett reported that the applicant was requesting to rezone 4.7 acres from I-M(1)
Industrial and C-M Commercial to a PD Planned Development with a C-M Commercial District
base zoning. In addition, the applicant was requesting to revoke the existing Special Permit for
the 65,000 square foot facility and establish a new Special Permit to expand the facility.

Mr. Shacklett gave a brief history stating that in March 2012, Tract 1 was rezoned to I-M(1)
Industrial to allow the applicant to request a Special Permit for a self-service warehouse and as
part of that permit a twenty year time limit was granted with two (2) five-year renewals. In
addition, the Special Permit allowed the applicant to add a 6,000 square foot, one-story building
to the southeast corner of the existing structure.

Mr. Shacklett stated that as part of the current proposal, the applicant was requesting two, two-
story additions to be located at the southeast and southwest corners of the existing building as
well as an 11,000 square foot separate building on northwest corner of the property. He added
that all three of the new buildings would be internally accessed and climate controlled.

Mr. Shacklett reviewed the following requested conditions with the Commission:

a) Building Height - Allow 2-story buildings within 150 feet of residentially zoned
property.

b) Setbacks — Request a 25-foot setback along the north property line in-lieu-of the required
60-foot open space setback for the proposed building north of the existing AutoZone.

c) Building Expansion — Request a 45-foot setback for the building expansion at the
southeast corner of the property which would make the zoning setback consistent with
the setback required by the plat.

d) Floor Area Ratio (FAR) — Request a maximum FAR of 0.7:1 for Tract 1 and a maximum
FAR of 0.6:1 for Tract 2.

e) Landscaping — Request that the majority of new landscaping be located on Tract 2
because of frontage on Arapaho Road as opposed to landscaping on Tract 1.

f) Arapaho Road Frontage — Request that improvements to the driveway and the 10-foot
landscape buffer be deferred until such time Tract 2 was developed.

g) Lot Without Frontage — Request that street frontage not be required for Tract 1 as long
as an access easement was provided to Arapaho Road.

h) Truck Rental — Request to add truck rental as an additional service to self-storage unit
renters.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

1) Signage — Proposal to prohibit signage on north elevations of all four buildings.
Additionally, signage would be prohibited on the east elevations of Buildings A and B,
and non-commercial signage (directional, safety, utility, etc.) would be allowed on all
elevations as necessary.

j) Time Limit — Request to restart the 20-year time limit from the date of passage of the
new ordinance.

k) Fire Lane Configuration — Proposal to swing the fire lane further to the south into the
existing striped “No Parking” area.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that thirteen pieces of correspondence in
favor had received as well as a petition in opposition with seventeen signatures.

Commissioner Roland asked if the landscape island with the pole light would have to be
removed to accommodate the propose change to the fire lane. He also wanted to know why the
design of the proposed fire lane could not be changed.

Mr. Shacklett replied that the light would come out, but the fire hydrant would remain. He
added that fire trucks require a 20-foot radius to make their turns and to cut the driveway any
further would be encroaching onto the AutoZone property.

Commissioner DePuy asked what effect the revised fire lane would have on Tract 2 once it was
sold. She also wanted to know how the staff recommended fire lane would impact the area.

Mr. Shacklett said that if the item was approved as presented, the new owner of Tract 2 would
have to respect the fire lane and not add any parking or landscape elements.

Regarding the staff recommended fire lane, Mr. Shacklett stated that staff’s recommendation
would take the existing north/south drive and brings it north, which would alleviate the
misalignment across the driveway and bring it back onto Tract 1. He added if the “Lot Without
Frontage” condition was approved they would have a mutual access agreement with the owner
of Tract 1.

Commissioner Frederick asked staff to restate the percentage of landscaping for Tracts 1 and 2.
She also wanted to know what would happen if Tract 2 was sold.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the item was approved as presented, there would be two legal
descriptions defining each tract separately and Tract 1 would be required to have a minimum
landscaping of three (3) percent and Tract 2 would be required to have a minimum of 18
percent.

Commissioner Ferrell asked why staff was recommending keeping the current time limit instead
of the requested change to move it to the date of ordinance approval. He also asked if the
applicant had any existing rights to add additional square footage and about the request to
reduce the landscaping.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Shacklett said that part of past discussions at City Council and Commission meetings had to
do with the fact the use was usually allowed only in an industrial district and the area would be
part of a future redevelopment and enhancement zone study. In addition, he stated the applicant
had approval through the previous ordinance to add a 6,000 square foot addition to the southeast
corner of the building.

Regarding the requested reduction in landscaping, Mr. Shacklett noted the current 65,000 square
foot building required only seven (7) percent landscaping, but once a building exceeds 75,000
square feet, the requirement for landscaping increases to ten (10) percent.

Commissioner Springs asked for clarification on the existing rights versus what the applicant
was requesting regarding zoning.

Mr. Shacklett explained that when the previous zoning change was requested in 2012, a PD
Planned Development could not be requested for a tract of less than 10 acres so the applicant
requested an I-M(1) Industrial District with a Special Permit for a self-service warehouse
developed in accordance with the C-M Commercial District regulations. However, if the
current application is granted, the PD would include a self-service warehouse with a base zoning
of C-M Commercial District.

Commissioner Maxwell wanted to know the mechanism for enforcing a mutual access
easement. He also asked if the combined landscaping percentages on Tracts 1 and 2 met the
City’s landscaping requirements.

Mr. Shacklett replied the suggested motion include a statement “the property shall be developed
in accordance with Exhibit D”, and within that exhibit under Section 7.2 there is the statement
that “Tract 1 may be platted without frontage on a public street as long as access is provided to
Arapaho Road.”

Regarding the combined landscape percentages, Mr. Shacklett explained there would be a
minimum of three (3) percent on Tract 1 and 18 percent on Tract 2 for a combined total of seven
(7) percent for both tracts even though the seven percent is not referenced in the conditions.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Bill Dahlstrom, Jackson Walker, LLP, 901 Main Street, Dallas Texas, representing the
applicant stated they were requesting to increase the total number of self-storage units by 140,
of which, they had entitlement under the current ordinance for an additional 6,000 square feet
and 60 units. He added the proposed expansion would provide a net increase of 80 units.

Mr. Dahlstrom noted that under the current zoning, the height was limited to 25 feet and they
would like to maintain that 25-foot height, but increase the number of stories to two (2) within
the height limitation. He also reviewed some of the other requests including frontage, truck
rental, FAR, signage restrictions, and landscaping.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Dahlstrom concluded his presentation by reviewing the elevations, placement of the
proposed buildings and asked the Commission to grant the request to restart the 20-year time
limit based on the need to reset the financing and the amount of investment being made by the
applicant.

Commissioner Frederick asked what impact the proposed fire lane would have on AutoZone.

Mr. Dahlstrom said it was his understanding the City’s Fire Department had agreed with their
proposal and the fire hydrant would remain on a small landscape peninsula. He added their
biggest issue with staff’s recommendations was the negative impact on the proposed number of
units.

Commissioner DePuy asked where the customer base has and will come from.

Mr. Dahlstrom replied that residents from the neighborhood use the facility as well as customers
from one to four miles away.

Commissioner Ferrell asked for the current landscape percentage on Tract 2. He also wanted to
know if the hours of operation would change and what would be the phasing of the new
construction.

Mr. Dahlstrom said he estimated that seven (7) percent of Tract 2 was landscaped and more
would be needed when it develops. He added the hours of operation would not change and all
the buildings would be built at the same time.

Commissioner Roland asked at what time the 18 percent landscape would come into play.

Mr. Dahlstrom replied the overall landscaping for Tract 2, as well as the throat depth of the
driveway and the two small triangular landscape areas, would be deferred until Tract 2 was
developed.

No other comments were received in favor and Chairman Hand called for comments in
opposition.

Ms. Julia Simon, 411 Jolee Street, Richardson, Texas, stated she was speaking on behalf of the
residents who signed the petition and were opposed to any expansion of the facility based on the
following concerns:
e Safety for area children
Increase in traffic
Loitering
Thefts
Lack of live vegetation for landscaping
Property values
Industrial looking exterior

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 8



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

e Negative effect on any future redevelopment in the area

Mr. Norman Hoppenstein, Hoppenstein Properties, Inc. — owner of the adjacent Camelot
Shopping Center, 7920 Belt Line Road, Dallas, Texas, said his opposition to the item was based
on the proposed location for the truck rentals. He suggested the trucks should be parked on the
east side of the main building.

Mr. Shacklett clarified that the rental trucks would be limited to the two parking spaces on the
east side of the building behind the proposed 6,000 square foot expansion.

Chairman Hand asked if the truck rental business could increase beyond two trucks.

Mr. Shacklett said that the conditions did not specify the number of trucks just the number of
parking spaces shown on Exhibit B.

Mr. Hoppenstein still had concerns that inexperienced drivers using larger trucks could pose a
traffic hazard, especially on the Arapaho Road curve.

Ms. Lianne LeBlanc, 511 Bedford Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated she was concerned about
the building being built without a definite date for the installation of the landscaping. She was
also concerned about traffic and home values.

Mr. Shacklett replied the minimum landscaping would be required at the time of construction
and the applicant was requesting to defer the 10-foot buffer, the throat depth and the landscape
island radius at the driveways. He also stated that there was approximately eight (8) percent of
landscape area provided and noted it may be discussed with the applicant if the 18 percent
would be part of the deferral.

No other comments were received in opposition and Chairman Hand asked the applicant if he
had any rebuttal comments.

Mr. Dahlstrom said they would like to include the 18 percent landscaping with the other deferral
items, and the three (3) percent increase would be included with the proposed buildings.

Mr. Dahlstrom addressed the concerns of those opposed as follows:

e Rental Trucks — limited to two (12-14 feet in length) parked on east side of building.

e Traffic — There is hardly any traffic now and they do not anticipate a sizeable increase
based on the number of units requested.

e Crime — there was crime on the property before the self-service warehouse was built, but
no crime has been reported in the three years the warehouse has been in existence.

e Height — the maximum height by right is 25 feet and no additional height was requested.

e Home Values — Interest has been expressed in the vacant property north of the
warehouse for single family homes.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 9



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

April 21, 2015

e Safety — the elementary school is over one-quarter mile away and there did not seem to
be a nexus between the two.

Mr. Dahlstrom concluded his comments by noting the self-service warehouse had been very
successful and was 95% occupied.

With no further comments or questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner DePuy stated that if the item was approved as written, Tract 1 would receive no
additional landscaping, whereas, Tract 2 would have 18 percent and asked if the landscaping
could be redistributed between the two tracts. She also wanted to know if there was any area on
Tract 1 that would accommodate additional visible landscaping.

Mr. Shacklett replied that it was not unusual for one acre pad sites to have 15-20 percent
landscaping. He added that once the landscape buffer was added, the majority of the tract
would most likely be developed as parking.

Regarding additional landscaping on Tract 1, Mr. Shacklett said there may be small areas
towards the back of Building D where additional landscaping could be added.

Commissioner DePuy also wanted to know if there had been any additional police activity in the
area.

Mr. Shacklett stated he contacted the police department and they said there had been seven (7)
calls in 2012; eight (8) in 2013; and five (5) in 2014.

Commissioner Roland asked for the height of the warehouse and the height for the church on
the adjacent property.

Mr. Shacklett replied he did not know the height of the church, but the warehouse was between
16 t017 feet tall.

Chairman Hand stated he concurred with a comment he heard recently that the City had too
much retail and those areas needed to be repurposed and maximized. He pointed out there were
mixed-use communities going up all over north Texas and felt that if the project was approved
as presented, it sent a message the City was giving up on the property. He said he did not
believe the proposal was the right use for the land when first proposed and was not the right use
now.

Vice Chair Bright said he understood the concerns expressed, and agreed that some properties
needed to be repurposed, but said he did not feel the City was giving up the property and felt it
was an appropriate use of the land. However, he was concerned about the misunderstanding of
the 18 percent landscaping and asked staff to clarify.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 10



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Shacklett replied that as the condition was written, “the landscaping shall be 18 percent,”
but suggested a statement could be substituted to stipulate the landscaping shall be deferred until
Tract 2 was developed and then it shall be 18 percent.

Vice Chair Bright asked if the staff was under the impression the 18 percent was going to be
deferred and, if that was the case, he was not in favor of deferring the full percentage amount.
He thought there might be another amount of landscaping that could take place now with
additional landscaping at the time of development.

Mr. Shacklett said Mr. Bright’s assumption was correct and if the zoning was approved “as is”,
then the 18 percent would be required on Tract 2.

Mr. Dahlstrom stated there had been a misunderstanding and they were agreeable to increase
Tract 2 to ten (10) percent landscaping at the time of approval.

Commissioner Frederick said she respectfully disagreed with Mr. Hand’s abandonment
comment and felt that by working with a property owner to increase an already successful
business was, to her, the exact opposite. She also thought that every redevelopment did not
need to be mixed use and she would be voting in favor of the proposal.

Commissioner Springs thanked those who came out to speak on the proposal and said he did not
necessarily see the project as a safety issue, but was concerned the project was not within the
City’s vision for future growth. He added that he would not be voting in favor of the proposal.

Chairman Hand asked to clarify his earlier statements regarding abandoning the property and
reminded the Commission of other revitalization zones where acquiring multiple properties and
putting those together could take decades to accomplish. He added that if the Commission
approved the proposal it would make the consolidation of parcels and redevelopment that much
harder because once a profitable self-service storage facility was established it would never go
away.

Commissioner DePuy said she thought self-storage warehouse was an improvement to the
property and had helped reduce crime in the area, but suggested more landscaping could be
placed around Tract 1. She added that she was in favor of the project and would prefer to stay
with the 2012 start date.

Vice Chair Bright thanked those in attendance for their comments and concurred with Ms.
DePuy’s statement about staying with the 2012 start date.

Mr. Shacklett interjected that in regard to an earlier question about the percentage of
landscaping on Tract 2, he calculated there was currently 12-13 percent landscaping on that tract
or approximately 6,300 square feet and to meet the 18 percent the total would have to be 9,500
square feet.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 11



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Shacklett suggested that another option might be to require that Tract 2 would have a
minimum 18 percent at development and landscaping prior to development would have to be in
conformance with the concept plan, which would maintain what is currently on the site.

Mr. Dahlstrom stated that if the property is currently at 12-13 percent, they would have no
problem with increasing that to 18 percent prior to the development of Tract 2 once the item is
approved.

Commissioner Maxwell asked about the landscaping along the frontage of the property and how
that area would be affected.

Mr. Shacklett replied that a 10-foot landscape buffer was required, but there were small
triangular areas, approximately 225 square feet, where landscaping was needed.

Commissioner Maxwell suggested that if the applicant was willing to increase Tract 2
landscaping to 18 percent, then the motion should also contain wording to include those
triangular areas along with the landscape island in the parking lot.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-03
as presented with no deferral of the 10-foot landscape buffer along Arapaho Road and
to require a landscape island in-lieu-of striping (as shown on Zoning Exhibit “B”)
across the driving aisle from the southwest corner of the existing building; second by
Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 5-2 with Chairman Hand and
Commissioner Springs opposed.

Note: Chairman Hand called for a five minute recess at 8:55 p.m. and the meeting reconvened at
9:01 p.m.

8. Zoning File 15-08 — Elks Lodge: Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval
of a Special Permit for a private recreation club in conjunction with a fraternal organization.
The site is located at 1203 Apollo Road, northeast corner of Glenville Drive and Apollo Road.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for a private recreation club
for the Plano/Richardson Elks Lodge (Lodge) located generally at the northeast corner of Apollo
Road and Glenville Drive. While the proposed use was allowed by right in the district, a private
recreation club would require a Special Permit. He advised that the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance defined a private recreation club as “a facility which provides recreation activities
and facilities to members. The sale, dispensing or serving of alcoholic beverages shall be
strictly incidental to the primary activities of the club.”

In reviewing the history of the Elks organization in Richardson, Mr. Shacklett noted the Lodge

had a similar Special Permit granted in 2007 for their current location off Presidential Drive, but
that location was rented and the new location would be owned by the Lodge.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 12



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Shacklett said staff had discussed parking issues with the applicant regarding the adjacent
Oncor property and Oncor’s refusal to allow access through their property to the north or allow
that area to be counted as part of their parking requirement. Therefore, in-lieu-of the Oncor
property, the applicant has spoken with another adjacent property owner, Trident Metals, who
agreed to allow the use of thirty-five parking spaces on the south and west sides of their

property.

Mr. Shacklett stated a parking study had been done and of the fifty-four parking spaces for
Trident, only 17-18 were used during the day with the parking lot was empty at night, and for
that reason a condition would be added to the Special Permit limiting meetings and events to
after 5:00 p.m. on week days, all day on weekends, and a closing time of 12 midnight.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting the applicant was requesting to waive the
requirement for an on-site dumpster and continue the practice established by the current tenant
who has an agreement with the City to bring their trash to the service center just north of the
property. He added that no correspondence has been received either in favor or opposed.

Vice Chair Bright asked how members and guests would enter the building from the Trident
parking lot.

Mr. Shacklett replied that after parking in the Trident lot, the members and guests would walk
west along a sidewalk on Apollo Road then on a north/south sidewalk into the building.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the hours of operation pertained strictly to the private
recreation club.

Mr. Shacklett replied the hours of operation for the fraternal organization were not being
provided because it was a use allowed by right, but the 5:00 p.m. to 12 midnight, as well as
weekends, pertained to the private recreation club. He added the special conditions provided
parameters as to when the club could be used so as not to conflict with Trident and provided an
end time for events. However, if the Commission was not concerned with having the hours of
operation listed it could be excluded from the special conditions.

Commissioner Maxwell said the parking agreement between Trident and the Lodge would
address the hours of operation when the agreement was filed with the county.

Mr. Shacklett stated the formal parking agreement had not been drawn up as yet so the special
condition would support the agreement until it was finalized.

Vice Chair Bright added that since the agreement is not in place, and the Commission does not
have control over the final parking agreement, he felt it was appropriate to keep it as part of the
special condition.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 13



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
April 21, 2015

Mr. Orville Weiss, 2733 Big Oaks Drive, Garland, Texas, representing the Lodge, reviewed the
history of the Elks organization stating they had been in the City since 1972 and explained some
of their philanthropic endeavors. Mr. Weiss added they had been looking for a place to own
since leaving their original location on St. Paul Street in Richardson and felt the proposed
location would fit their needs.

No other comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed
the public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 15-08;
second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular
business meeting at 9:17 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-4-21 Minutes.doc 14



